
Arent Fox
May 14,2009

t\rent Fox llP I Washington, DC I New York, NY I Los Angeles, CA

FILED/ACCEPTED

MAY" 4 2009
- CoolIlIJnlcatlons Commls8lon

OffIce of the SacrolaJy

BY HAND DELIVERY

Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary
Federal Communications Commission
Office of the Secretary
clo Natek, Inc., Inc.
236 Massachusetts Avenue, N.E., Suite 110
Washington, DC 20002

Re: Level 3 Communications, LLC's May 12, 2009 Petition

Dear Ms. Dortch:

Michael B. Hazzard
Attorney

202.857.6029 DIRECT
202.857.6395 FAX

hazzard.michael@arentfox.com

Reference Number
031498.00004

I represent Hyperc!lbe Telecom, LLC ("Hypercube") in a complaint against Level 3
Communications, LLC ("Level 3") pending before the California Public Utilities Commission
("PUC"), which I filed on May 8, 2009. A copy of this complaint is attached as Exhibit A.

In response, Level 3 filed its May 12 petition. That petition, improperly styled as a
request for "declaratory ruling," is a sham effort to: (i) disrupt Hypercube's pending complaint
and (ii) provide a veneer for Level 3's unlawful self-help efforts 1 directed against common
carriers, like Hypercube, that are obligated to exchange traffie with Level 3,

That Level 3' s petition is a sham is plain. First, neither the Commission nor any other
body ever has found, or remotely suggested, that "section 332(c) preempts the application of
intrastate originating access tariffs to wireless toll-free calls." Pet. at I. Level 3 provides no
citation otherwise. Second, the Commission established its benchmark mechanism for
competitive local exchange carrier interstate access charges over eight years ago? Tellingly,
Level 3 has never challenged any of Hypercube's tariffed interstate access rates as inconsistent

Attached as Exhibit B is a recent filing by Hypercube describing unlawful self-help
efforts of interexhcange carriers, like Level 3. Under longstanding federal and state rules, Level
3 paid Hypercube's tariffed access charges for years. Since November 2007, however, Level 3
has refused to pay any compensation for access services Hypercube has indisputably performed
and continues to perform in accordance with its common carrier obligations.
2 Access Charge Reform, Reform ofAccess Charges Imposed by Competitive Local
Exchange Carriers, Seventh Report and Order and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, 16
FCC Rcd 9923 (200 I) ("Seventh Report and Order").
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with the Commission's interstate benchmark. Third, the Commission reviewed and approved
revenue sharing arrangements between 8YY call generators and access providers five years ago.]
At best, Level 3's ftling amounts to a patently untimely petition for reconsideration.

The Commission is under no obligation to seek comment on sham petitions, such as
LeveI3's. And the Commission should not indulge Level3's effort to game the Commission's
processes for purposes of disrupting state commission complaint proceedings and attempting to
justify unlawful self-help efforts.4 Indeed, petitions like Level 3's mock the Commission's rules
and serve only to waste the resources of the Commission and the industry.

To the extent the Commission is inclined to seek comment on Leve13's petition, which it
should not, fundamental fairness requires that the Commission first meet with representatives of
Hypercube and Level 3 to get a complete understanding of the context of Level 3's petition and
to include in any public notice the full panoply ofissues presented (e.g., the proper use ofthe
declaratory ruling process and the impropriety of interexchange carrier self-help efforts).

Towards that end, I will begin working to set up meetings with appropriate Commission
representatives on behalf of Hypercube. I also will copy on all correspondence and invite to all
meetings representatives of Level 3.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me.

Sincerel

~
Michae TJ{l~~,
Counsel t

Attachments

cc: (Via Electronic Mail)
Scott Deutchman Julie Veach
AI Lewis John Nakahata, Counsel to Level 3

Access Charge Reform, Reform ofAccess Charges Imposed by Competitive Local
Exchange Carriers, Eighth Report and Order and Fifth Order on Reconsideration, 19 FCC Rcd
9108. mr 69-72 (2004).
4 The Commission has recognized that "[XCs appear routinely to be flouting their
obligations under the tariff system." Seventh Report and Order at ~ 93. That is precisely what
Level 3 is doing here.
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BEfORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

HYPERCUBE TELECOM, LLC
(U-6592-C),

Complainant,

v.

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICAnONS, LLC
(U-5941-C),

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Case _

COMPLAINT OF HYPERCUBE TELECOM. LLC AGAINST
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC FOR LEVEL 3'5
REFUSAL TO PAY TARIFFED ACCESS CHARGES

Punuant 10 sections 701, 702, 1702, and 2106 of the Califumia Public Utilities Code,

and Article 4 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Public Utilities Commission of the

State of California (the "Commission''), Hypercube Telecom, LLC (U-6592-C) ("Hypercube"),

by their W1dersigned counsel, brings thil Complaint apinst Level 3 Conununications, LLC (U­

5941-C) ("Level 3") and in IlIpport then:of state 8S follows:

I. SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND

A. Nahan ofCompiaiRt

I. This Complaint is filed baaed on Level 3 's unlawful refilsallo pay Hypercube, a

competitive local exchange carrier ("CLECi, for tariffed access services perfonned by

Hypercube in c:onnection with Level 3's provision of toll-free (i.e., "800" or "8VY") calla that

originate and terminate within the Stale of California. Level 3 offers certain of its customers



2

toll-free calling services, which are commonly referred to as "SOO services" or "SYY services.'"

Hypercube has perfonned and continues to perform the services that are the subject of this

Complaint PlJ(lluant to Hypercube's Commission-approved Schedule Cal. P.ll.C. No.2-T

("Hypercube's Inttastate Access Tariff'), which sets forth the rates, tenns, and oonditions for

Hypercube's provision of intrastate access services to Level 3 and others. Relevant oopies of

Hypercube's Intrastate Access Tariffare attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2. Hypercube has attempted to resolve this mailer by negotiation with Level 3, but

those efforts have been unsuccessful.

B. At:eels SeJ'Yfees Provided by Hypercube to Level 3

3. When Level 3 provides iIJ customer with an ayy service, other oonsumers and

carriers alike know that Level 3 is I'tlIIPOIISible fur all costs associated with delivering the toll-free

call 10 Level 3's customer.2 These costs include payment for access services associated with

Level3's use ofother carriers' netwoTlts to support Level3's toll-fi'ee produet offerings. When a

carrier handles a call to an 8YY number, the carrier must query a databese that maintains a list of

telecommunications carriers offering avy service. Through pel fWllIing this database query,

also known as a "dip," the carrier llandIing the 8YY telephone call ensWl:S that calls have the

appiOpiiate R:atures applied and are st:Ilt 10 the oorrec:t telecommunications carrier and.

ultimately, to the correct customer destination. The provisioning of access services creates a cost

burden on carriers, like Hypercube, that are involved in the delivery ofayy traffic to the comet

The industry term "aVY" recognizes that toll free dialing codes in addition to "800"
exist, 8IIch as "888" or ''1166.''

Level3's role in this may also be described 18 that of the "RESPORG." which is
shorthand for "Responsible Organization." The RESPORG is the oompany responsible fur
managing aoo database records for particular 8YY telephone numbers. Typically, a carrier. such
as Level 3, will serve 18 the RESPORG furall oftbe ayy numbers it assigns to its ayy
subscribers.

2



interexchange carrier ("IXC"). Carriers providing these access services are entitled to

compensation from the IXC, here Level 3, that sells 8YY service to end users.

4. Indeed, when a calling party dials an SYY number (i.e., a toll-free number), the

carriers involved in delivering the call to the IXC are precluded from essessing any charges on

the person making the toll-free phone call. lnsleld, the IXC providing the toll-free service to its

customers, here Level 3, is responsible for paying all of the access costs associated with getting

SVY calls from the person malting the phone calt to the IXC's customer that subscribes to (and

pays lOr) toll-free service.

5. Hypercube has perfonncd its duties as a telecommunications carrier to (i) provide

switched access services that allow Level 3 to utilize Hypercube's network to receive SYY calls

destined fur Level3's subsaibers and (ii) query the appropriate database to make sure Level 3'5

traffic is correctly routed to Level 3. Although Level 3 paid Hypercube's tariffed intrastate

access dIarges for years, Level 3 unilatenlly bepn refusing to pay its bills for Hypercube's

access service besinnina in November 2007 and ~tinuillll throush the present.

C. The Commt......·s Acaa Cbup JleRIme For CLEC.

6. Over the last several yem, thia Commission conducted an access charge reform

proceeding for CLECs and other LEes. In its December 12, 2007 Firttll Opinion Modifying

InlrastllJe Ac:ce.ss Cltarges, 0.07-12-020 (2007), Ihe Commission capped tariffed CLEC access

charge l1IIeS in a two-step process.

7. First, on or before April I, 2008, CLECs with tariffed intrastate access rates fur

tnnsport IIDd switching functions "in CllCCSS of SO.025 per minute" were required to "file and

serve an advice Ieller" confunniug their rates to the cap.) Because Hypercube's pre-Cllisting

) 0.07·12-020 at 16.
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Intrastate Access Tariff already had conlained this $0.025 rate for transport and switching since

at least September 1,2006, Hypercube's tariff complied with the Commission's decision well

before it look effect.'

8. Second, effeetive January I, 2009, CLEC inlraslatea~ rates were "capped at

the higher of AT&T's or Verizon's inlnlslale aa:ess charges, plus 10% .....05 Commission Staff

conducted a detailed review of various CLEC compliance filings, and Staff approved

Hypercube's revised rates effective JlUIII8IY I, 2009.6

9. Even thouch: (i) Hypercube has provided its tariffed access services to Level 3

on a CODlinuous basis as required by Cllifimlia law IIId Commission poliey'; (ii) Hypercube has

complied with the Commission's access dJarge regulations; IIId (iii) the Commission has

reviewed IIId approved Hypercube's tariffed access charge rates as compli8llt with the

Commission's regulations, Level 3 reliJses to ..y its bills for Hypercube's access services.

D, The FCC's Aeeea CIwp ReaJ- For CLECs

Hypercube Intrastate Access T.-ift I Revised Sheet Cal P.U.C. Sheet No. 45 (Sept. I,
20(6) (lIltaebed hereto as Exhibit A, Tab 3).

,
D.07-12-C120 III 16.

6

,
Hypercube Intrastate Aecess Tariff; I Revised Sheet Cal P.U.C. Sbeet No. 46-47 (JIlL I,

2009) (a1tIclIcd hereto as Exhibit A, Tab I).

The Commisaion hBs held that "all carriers are obIipted to complete calls whllre it is
technically feasible to do so regardI_ ofwhetber they beIieYe that the underlyinll intercarrier
compcIlIIlltion~ for compIelion ofcalla are proper. The obliption to complete calls
applies ... equally to all carriera involved in the origination, routinllllld completion ofcalls.
WhedIer a call orisinates or terminations on a carrier's networit, the obliplion to complete calls
is the-. This obliption is a fundameDtaI principle and expectation Wldaiying both stale and
federal stat"tes" D.97-11~24.p. 5 (citinaP.U.C. Code § 558).

4
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IO. In its Access Clulrge Reform, Reform ofAccess Charges Imposed by Competitive

Local Exchange Carriers, Seventh Report and Order and Further NOlice of Proposed

Rulcrnaking, 16 FCC Red. 9923 (2001) (the "Seve1Ith Report and Order'), the Federal

Communications Commission ("FCC") held thai IXCs, such as Level 3, are obligated 10

pun:base tariffed CLEC access services, including those relaled to loll·free calls made fiom

wireless networks.s The FCC found that BII IXC's refusal to pay for access services constitutes a

violation of Section 201 of the Conununications Act.9 The FCC also held that tariffed CLEC

access charges for such services are "conclusively deemed reesoilable."lo

I I. In making this finding. \he FCC emphasized that calls mUll flow between carriers

in order to ensure universal c:onnectivity BII\OI\g COIlSllRlCrll tIud lISe the Public Switched

Telephone Netwotk.1l This is particularly importanl with toll-free service (i.e., "gyy") because

carriers, such as Hypercube, thai provide aa:ess services in support of toll-free services are

legally precluded from clIarging the callioa JIlIfly (Le., the person making the call) for calling a

toll-free nWllber. In offering toll-free service, the !XC, in this case Level 3, commits to paying

The Commission has repeatedly held lbal FCC ruIiap, such the Seventh ReptJl1 and
Order, provide "useful guidance" in inlerpreting inlJatate l8riffs. See. e.g., 0.97"()8-076 at 12.
Specific to access chlqea, the CommiISion notal with lIppIOvaI in the Flttal Oplnioll Modifling
IlIlJ'tlStaU Access Charges the FCC's lICCCSII c:Iuqe refi:mn effurt, which is substanlively similar
to the regime implemented by the Commission. See 0.07-I2"()20, IS-I6.

Sne1Jdt Report and Order lit '197. In \he Seventh Report and Order, the FCC established
a series of rate caps for CLEC access tariffs associated with interstate aa:ellS services.
Hyperoube has complied with the FCC's access chllJlC regulations.

10 Id. at 'I 60.

II Id. ai' 93. See also Id. at' 23 (noting that "IXCs appear routinely to be flouting their
obligations IBIderthe tariffsystan"); '124 (IXC traffic blocking "lhreaten[s]to compromise the
ubiquity IIId seamlessness of the nation's telemmmunications networlc: and lXIuld resull in
COIISUIDer confusion.").

S



all costs, including access charges, associated with toll-free calls. IXCs may only n:coup these

costs from their toll-free subscribers (I.e., the called party).

12. Specific to SYY traffic, the FCC held that it was "not necessary immediately to

cap [CLEC] access rates for 8YY traffic 8t the rate of the competing [ILEC).,,12 "Rather," the

FCC continued, CLECs could "continue to charge the previously established" rate. 13 Thus,

access services associated with carrying SYY traffic to the correct IXC have always been, and

are still, IWly compensable.

13. The FCC has also held dill CLECs may assess tariffed acoess charges on IXCs

when acting as BII intermediate carrier delivering calls from wireI_ carriers to IXCs. 14 CLECs

are entitled to _ tariffed charges for the ftmctiooalities they perform (e.g., IrBIIsport,

switching, etc.); CLECs may not charge pursuant to their tariffs for the work that wireless

carriers patfutnl in carrying these calls. Rather, only the wireless carrier may charge for this

wortc, and wireless carriers may assess sud! charges based on express or implied contracts. 15

14. Specifically regarding traffic fium wireless service providers, the FCC has stated

that while "8 competitive LEe has DO right to collect access charges for the portion of the service

provided by the [wireless) provider," it CIR charge for access components at rates comparable to

" ACCi!£S C1IIIrge /UfDml, R¢"" ofA1:ctm C1Iorps Imposed by Competllive Local
Exdrange CDrrien, Eighth Report and Order and Fifth Order on Reconsideration, 19 FCC Red.
9108,' 70 (2004) ("Eighth /Upon tuId 0rYkt'').

13

14

Id.

Eighth Report tuId Ortlu at" 16-17.

15 PeJititHu ofSpl-int PeS aruI ATtlTCorp.for Declaratory Ruling R4gardi"6 CMRS
A«e.u Charges, Deciantory Ruling, 17 FCC Red. 13,192,' 12 (2002) ("Sprint PCS').

6



11

those charged by the ILEC for the SlIIJle functions!· The FCC added, however, that CLECs

"continue to have flexibility in determining the access rate elements and rate structure for the

elements and services they provide."n Thus. in cootrast to the regulation of fLECs, the

"benchmark rate for CLEC switched access doea not require any particular rate elements or rate

slTUcture; for eumple, it does not dictate whether a CLEC mIlS! use f1at-rate charges or per­

minute charges, so long as the composite rate does not exceed the benchmarlc.,,18

IS. The FCC's findin&, are amsistent with that of stale public utilities commissions

addressing similar issues. For example, in a dispute brouaht by WilTel against Verizon at the

New Yolk Public Service Commission ("NYPSC"),19 WilTei alleged that Verizon was not

entitled to lICCCSIl charges for the traffic it terminated to wireleas carriers' end users because the

wireless carriers themselva would IIOl be entitled to compellSlltion from an IXC for access

clutrges unleas a contrael existed bCItween the two parties. Under the filed tariff doctrine, the

NYPSC held that WitTe! was required to pay Verizon for the ICI'Vices it performed in completing

the call.

16 Eighth R'PO" tutd OrderIt" 16-11. See al80 tli. It' 21 ("Competitive LECs also have,
and always had, the ability to c:hqe for common transport when they provide it, including when
they subtcnd an incumbent LEC tandem switclL Cmnpetitive LECs that impose such c:hartla
should calculate the rate in a manner that reasonably approximates the ccmpeting incwnbeot
LEC rate.'').

Jd. at' 17 and 0.58.

,. SnMtIJ /lepoI'I tutd Order at 'I 55. The FCC bas declined to regulate the rate charged for
database qu«iellISSOCilleci with gyy calla. Elgh'h Rqol't tmd Order II o.2S1.

19 New York Public Service Conunission, Case 04-C-1 548 (May 30, 2006). A copy of this
decision is attached hereto at Exhibit B.
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E. Spedfie Issues Related To Toll-Free CaUs That CommeDee OD Wireless
Networks

16. The calls at issue in this case are loll-free calls made by consumers using their

wireless phones to level 3's 8VY subscribers.

11. Wireless carriers may cbarge IXCs and others access charges by express or

implied contract fur use of the wireless carrier's nelworlt for call origination and termination.2o

Unlike LECs (ClEC. and IlEe.), however, wireless carriers may not tile tariffS with the FCC

or the stale commissions for these services.

18. Due in large part to the difficulty of negotiating individual contracts with !XCs,

certain wireless carriers have found it more convenient to route access calls, including SVY calls,

to lECs as early in the call stream as possible. By doing so, the wireless carrier minimizes the

amount ofworlt it must perform on behalfof the IXC for free.

19. U!CS delivering the calls from a wireless carrier's networks to an lXC's network

are entitled to bill the IXC for the worlt the lEC performs pursuant to tiled tariffS.

20. In many instances, LECs provide a cost recovCl)' fee to the wireless carrier fur

routing the toll lice traffic over the LEC's networit for deliVCl)' to the 1XC. The FCC has

reviewed these types of arrangements and found 110 cause to limit them or otherwise restrict the

ability of an intermediate carrier to recover tariffcd-bllsed access charges for the work

performed.21

21. This is true even in instances where there is more than one lEC involved in

delivering an 8VY call from a wireless CIIIrier's networit to the !XC. At any time, an !XC may

20

1\

Sprint PeS at , 12.

Elglllh Rqort and Order at "69-72.

8



intercolUlect directly with BIl intennediate LEC (or in some cases, even din:ctly with the wireless

carrier) to minimize the nwnber of carriers involved in handling BIl SVY call.22 When an IXC

does so, it avoida entirely the acc:ess cbarges associated with the functionality that previously

22. Hypercube offers and specifically pursues direct interconnection with all IXCs.

Hypm:ube directly interconnects with all IXCs larger thin Level 3, and with a nwnber of IXCs

smaller thIIn Level 3. Din:ct interc:onnedion is Hypen:ube's preferred method of delivering

traffic to (and receiving traffic &om) IXCs. In spite of multiple invitations &om Hypercube,

Level 3 has declined to dinlctIy intenxmnect its network with Hypercube's netWork for SVY

calls destined to Level 3" customers.

II. PARTII'.S, JURISDICTION, CATEGORY OF PROCEEDING, HEARING
REQUIREMENT,ISSUES AND PROPOSED SCHEDULE

23. PunuaDt to Rule 4.2 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure,

ComplaillBllts JR'Ovide the following information:

a. Hypen:ube Telecom, LLC is a Delawm'e limited liability company that is

in the business of, among other things, providing intenl8le and intrastate

telecoDlDllUlieations services to various custOtnelS, including IXCs. The lIddress

and telephone nwnber ofthe Complainant is IS follows:

Hypercube Telecom, LLC
3200 West PleasBnt Run Rold
Suite 260
Lancaster, Texas 75 146
(469) 727·1510

Access CIuJrge Rltfomt. Prairie W/llIC Te/et:OlllmllniCQliollS Inc. PetiJionfor Waiver. et
01., Older, 23 FCC Red. 2556,"'26-27 (2008) r'PratrleWa.-e''}.
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Complainant is represented in this matter by the following attorneys:

Jennifer Terry
Anmt Fox LLP
Gas Company Tower
555 West Fifth Sueet, 48th Floor
Los Anples, CA 90013
Tel: 213.629.1400
Fax: 213.629.1401
lcrry.jennifer@an:ntfolt.com

Michacl B. Hazzard
Joseph P. Bowser
Arent Fox LLP
1050 Connecticut Ave, N.W.
WIIlIhiJI&ton, DC 20036-5339
Tel: (202) 851-6029
Fax: (202) 261-0035
hazzard.michaal@arentfox.com
bowsa'.joscph@aRntfox.com.com

b. On information and belief, Defendant Level 3 Communications, LLC is an

entity created IIIlder the laws of the State of Delawme that is also in the business

of providing interstaIC and inll'aState telecommunications service to various

customers. Level 3's service offerin&s include long distance service and toIl-fm:,

SVY calling services. The addIess and telephone number ofLevel 3 is:

Level 3 Communications, LLC
1025 EIdor8cIo Boulevard
Broomfield, Coiondo 80021
(720) 818-2512

On information and belief, Del'endant is being represented in this matter by:

Gregory 1.. Rogers
I02S EkIonIdo Boulevard
Broomfield, ColonIlIo 10021
(720) 888-2512

c. The CllIDIIIiaion ha jurisdietion ova' this mitlei' JlIII'lIuant to Sections

70I, 1702, and 1707 of the Califumia Public Utilities Code based on the fact that

Hypen:ube and Level 3 are public utilities subject to the California Public Utilities

Code, and Level 3 has violated the California Public Utilities Code and

Hypen:ube's Intrastate Tariffu 8Cll forth below.

d. This proceeding should be cstegDrized IS an adjudiCllDly proceeding.

10



e. Hypercube contends Ihal the issues underlying Hypercubc's claims may

bc resolved on the basis of the pleadings submitted by the parties and that a

hearing may not be requillld before the issuance of an Order awanling the relief

requested by Hypercube. To the extent that the Commission determines that there

are any material factual disputes, a hearing to reaoIve any such dispute(s) will be

necessary.

£ The isaues to be resolved in this matter are:

I. Whether Level 3 sbouId be ordered to pay the amounlll properly due

and owina under Hypercube's Intrutate Access Tariff, including

attomey's feel.

2. Whether Level 3 should be onleied to pay penalties to the Stale of

Califumia tor violations of the CaliiHnia Public Utilities Code bssed 011

its viollllioD ofHypen:ubc's hIlulst81e Access Tariff.

g. Hypercube JlI'OIlO8CS the followiDg schedule:

Service ofComplaint Day J

Answer Day 31

Prehearillll eonre.wce Day 38

Discovery Completed DayS3

Dispositive Motions Day 90

Oppositions to Dispositive
Motions Day 104

Replies to Oppositioo to
Dispositive Motions DaylJJ

Evidentiary Hearing,

II



III. FACTS

ifNecessary

Opening Briefs

Reply Brim

Presiding Officer
Decision

Day 141 and 142

Day 151

Day 111

Day 199

24. Complainant incorporales tile preceding parqraphs of its Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

25. Hypercube provides intenlaCe and intraatate access services to various customers,

including IXCs. Hypercube's claims in the praent Complaint concem only its provision of

intrastate KcesS services to Levcl 3 in Ihe State of California pursuant to Hypercube's Intrastate

Access Tariff.

26. When wireless customen' toIi-fhle calls are routed through the Complainant's

facilities, Complainant provides ICCCIII services and database query services to the !XC that is

being paid by its customers to provide the toll-free service to those customers.

21. When Hypercube provides acc:eu services in c:onnection with a call made from a

wireless telephone, the call is routed &om the wireless carrier's Mobile Telecommunications

Switcl1ing Office to Complainant's networic aod switdling equipment.

28. While the call is in the Complainant's swildl, Complainant perfonns switching

and routing functions and additional services, such 81 nmning a query of the national SVY

telephone number database to determine where the call !houId be routed (known as a "database

dipj. Once the database returns information regarding the !XC wbose SVY customer has b8llll

called, Complainant's switch perfonns the oecesslll'y routiDg to deliver the call to the !XC's

network.

12



29. Common carriers, like Hypen:ube, have an obliplion to route traffic to other

carrien, such as Level 3. Cal. P.U. Code § 558. A1J a result of this obligation and in

consideration for work performed, Complainant is entitled to bill and to collect charges for the

access services provided to other canicts, including Level 3 for illl SVY customers. at tariffed

rates approved by the Commission.

30. Hypercube's Intrastate Access Tariff Illlls forth the terms and conditions according

to which Complainant provides intnstate 8CllesS lIII'vic:es to Level 3 in connection with Level 3's

SVY offering. The tariff IOIll forth !be lamB and conditions of these lI8IIIC services where a call

originates and terminates in California.

3J. From November 200S lbrausb the present, Hypercube has routed calls to Level 3

as part of the SVY service that Level 3 offas to iIB customers. On information and belief, no

other entity has charged Level 3 for the llCCCIIII services or databue query services performed by

Complainant's switch and network.

32. From November 200S through October 2007, with the exl:qltion of late payment

fees, Level 3 paid CompIaiD8llt in lidl for virtually all of the 8CllesS services performed by

ComplaiDant's switcll and network.

33. BllIinnina in November 2007, Level 3 bepn witllho1dina all amounts owed fOr

access services provided by Complainant.

34. Level 3 has never commuoicated any claim that it has not received the access

services fiom Hypercube for which it has been invoiced.

35. Level 3 has never communicatlld lOy claim that Hypercube has billed Level 3 for

an incorrect DlllllberofminUles ofuse for 8YY traffic.
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36. Level 3 has never communicated any claim that Hypercube has billed Level 3 for

an inllClmCl volume ofdatabase queries.

37. Since November 2007 and continuing through the present, Level 3 has received,

accepted, and benefited from inlr8statC acc:css services provided by Hypercube in connection

with Level 3's SVY offering to its customers. Level 3 accepted the SVY calls that Hypercube

carried. on its network: and confinned (through database queries) were dcslined to Level 3's SVY

customers. Level 3 delivered those calls to ilB customlllll as part of Level 3's gvy service

offering. On infonnation and belief, Level. 3 has received and continues to receive payment from

its gvy customers for all calls Complainant lniIlsmits to Level 3. In short, Level 3 wants to

collect revenue from its customers for providing toll-free service without paying the costs that

Hypcn:ube - which is Icplly oblipled to deliver calls to Level 3 - incurs in delivering the toll­

free calls to Levcl3.

38. Since February 2OOS, Hypcn:ube has been attempting to resolve Level 3's non-

payment through negotiations.

39. At all times relevant hmto, LevcI 3 has had actual and constructive notice of

Hypercube's inlr8statC network and daf8bMe query access charp for delivering SVY traffic.

Level 3 continues to receive, use, and benefit from Hypercube's inlnistlte access services.

40. To date, Level 3 has refused to pay an amOlDlt not less than 515,931,351.61 in

Hypercube's lawfully billed charges to Level 3 for interstate and intrastate access service.

41. For intrastate calls originating and terminating within the Stale of California,

Levcl 3 has refUsed to pay a past-due amount owed of 1101 less than 55,557,979.97 in

Hypan:ube's lawfully billed charges to Level 3 pursuant to Hypercube's Intrastate Access Tariff.
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42. The amount overdue from Level 3 for access services provided by Hypercube

represents service provided during the months of November 2007 through April 2009. These

amounts continue to grow each month as: (i) Hypercube continues to satisfy its statutory duty as

a common carrier to provide sa:ess services to Level 3; (ii) Level 3 avails itselfof Hypercube's

access services; (iii) Level 3 utilizes those services as sn input to the BVY services Level 3

providllll to its cuslomenl and fur which Level 3 receives payment; and (iv) Level 3 refuses to

pay for the eccess services received ftum Hypercube.

43. Level 3's retbsal to pay these charges and associated late fees is without legal

justifieation or CK.cuse.

44. On infonnation snd belief; LGveI 3 has been and continues to be in financial

trouble, which may be the lIOlII'Ce of its rdUsI1 to pay its bills. On December 2B, 2008, Standard

&; Poor's ratilll -seney downgraded the cmporate credit rating of Level 3's Pll1'eDt to ''selective

default." Level 3's parent has been reported to be considering banknJplcy, which could alleviate

certain of its obHgations to debtors. In sdditioo, _ number of groups repns~nting Level 3

shardtolders have filed securities fraud complaints against Level 3's parent, which were

consolidated in federal court on February 27,2009.

JI'IItST CAUSE OJ' AcnON
(LEVEL 3'8 VIOLATION OF

uxnpgry'S INTIlASTAD TARIm

45. Complainsnt incotporates the pre=ling paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

46. Hypercube's lntrasllde Access Tariff sets forth the chlll'JlCS that Hypercube

imposes on carriers that use its services.
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47. The provisions of Hypercube's Intrastate Access Tariff were approved by the

Commission and thererore have the fon:e of law, establishing Hypercube's lawful rates for

providing the telecommunications services dcsaibed above.

48. Hypercube has provided services to Level 3 that are compensable under

Hypercube's Intrastate Access Tariffu described above.

49. Level 3 has WIlawfully refused to pay the Commission-approved tariff charges set

rorth in the invoices presented to Level 3 by Hypercube.

SO. M of May 2009, the tota1 8IIlOUIIt ofput·due, tariffed charges that Level 3 owes

pursuant to Hypercube's lDIrutate Access Tariff but tIW Level 3 has rufused to pay is

S5,114,74U3 pillS late payment c.barps of$343,328.74, totslingS5,557,97U7.

SECOND CAUSI: or ACfION
(LEVEL 3'8 VIOLATION or

SECTION 702 0,. TIlE
CALD'OIlNlA PUBLIC m.ffW! CODE)

51. Complllinant inc:orporates the precerling JlUIII1lPbs u ifMly set filrth herein.

52. California Public Utilities Code § 702 provides that "re)very publi(: utility shall

obey and comply with ewry order, decision, direction, or rule made or prescribed by the

commission ... and shall do everythina necelliry or proper to sec:ure compliance t1unwith by all

ofits officers, agents, and employees."

53. Hypercube's InlrlltBte Access Tariff has the force of law and constitutes 811

"order, decision, dim:tion, or rule made or prescribed by the commission."

54. Level 3'1 reliIIa\ to pay Hypercube's Commiasion-approved tariff chargea

theleti>re conatituk:s a violation of § 702 of the Califomia Public Utilities Code.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(LEVEL 3'S VIOLATION OF

SECIlON 761 OF THE
CALIFORNIA PUByC UTILITIES CODE)

55. Complainant incorporates the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

56. California Public Utilities Code § 761 prohibits "unjust" and 'imreasonable"

practices by public utilities.

57. On infonnarion and belief, Level 3 pays certain other carriers' tariffed intrastate

IICCe8S ebaraes in Califumia for delivering avy traffic and perfonning database dips for calls

conunencing on wireline networks.

58. On information and belief, Level 3 pays certain other carriers' tariffed intrastate

access charges in California for delivering 8YY traffic 1ft! performing database dips for calls

commencing on wireless networks.

59. Level 3'8 decision to IlOIIIJlllIIS8lllOllle carriers but not others for performing the

same work on Level 3's behalf c:oostitutes an unjust, lIIII'eISOl1lIble, and discriminatory prac:tice

that violates § 761 of the California Public Utilities Code and risks damagina the ubiquity of the

Public Switched Telephone Network in CalifomiL

60. Level 3's relbsa1 to pay Hypen:ube's Commission-lIppIOved tariff charges also

constitutes an lIJIiust and unreasonable practice tIl8l violates § 761 of the California Public

Utilities Code.

IV. REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, CompIlIinant respectfully requests that the Commission:

a. IsBUe an Order declaring that Hypercube has lawfully charged Level 3 for

intrllstllte access services pursuant to Hypercube's filed 1nlnIslate Access Tariff.
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b. [lSue an Order directing LIlYel3 immediately to pay 55,557,97!U7 to Hypercube

fur the access services provided by Hypercube to LIlYe[ 3 in connection with LIlYe[ 3's provision

of toll-free, "800" or "SYY" calling services to LIlYel 3's CU8tomers.

c. Issue an Order under Section 2[06 of the California Public Utilities Code

directing Leve[ 3 to pay Hypercube's cos1B in bringing this Complaint and the attorneys' fees and

expenses incurred by Hypercube in pursuing this Comp[aint, as raquired under Hypercube's

lariff.

d. Issue an Order directing Lllvel 3 to pay Hypercube all future charges Level 3

incurs UDder Hypercube's Intrastate TllritT fur services provided by Hypen:ube in connection

with Level 3's provision of loll-fi'ee ''800'' or "SYY" calling services to Level 3's customers.

e. Issue an Order fining Level 3 up 10 520,000 pel' day foI' each day that it continues

to violate California Public Utilities Code §§ 702 aod 761 &om the date of filing of this

Complaint PU1'SUllllIIo CalifOrnia Public Utilities Code II 2107 and 2108.

f. Issue an Order requiring LllvoI 3 10 provide Hypercube with reasonable security

of firture performance in the Conn of a cash dr:posit, irrevocable letter of cralit, or bond in an

amount not less than 52,500,000.00.

g. Expedite this proceeding to !be extent practicable to minimize the risk of non-

paymlllll to Hypercube lhat could result from a decision by Level 3 10 file foI' prolection under

the bankruptcy laws.

h. Grant such olher relief aod n:medies as the Commiasion deems just and proper.
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Jennifer Terry
Arenl Fox LLP
Gas Company Tower
555 Wf/Sl Fifth Street, 48th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Tel: 213.629.7400
Fax: 213.629.7401
terry.jennifer@arentfox.cam

MayS. 2009

Respectfully submitted,

HYPERCUBE TELECOM, LLC

~
Jr>&eph P. Bowser
Arenl Fox LLP
IOSOConnecticul Ave, N.W.
Washington, DC 20036-5339
Tel: (202) 857-6029
FllX: (202) 261-0035
hazzard .michael@arentfolLcom
bowserJoseph@arentfox.com.com

COlIMal for Complainants
Hypercube Tolecom. LLC
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YJBJlJfADON

I am aD officer of Hypercube Telecom LLC. cme of the complaining 6mi\lld liability

c:oDJllll%lies~ BDd am llUtborized to IIIIIkc this veri1ica1ion 1Hl i1s behalf. The stlItemenIs In

the furegoing cIocumeDllIIe true of my own kDawledge. IlXCIlpl as to mallm wIOOh lIN tberein

stated lID infonuation and belief; and 81 to tbolIe matters I believe them to be true.

I dec1111e \IIIder pa;UIY tbat the furegoiDg is true and conect.

Executed on May B. 2OO!I, at LlDra..... TIlIW.
(Date) (City) (SlIde)

(SIBJIII\IR) ~­
(NIIIIID) Clay MyClrl

(Carpoulle title) Executive Vice PmidflIIt BDd CPO
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Edilma em, certify that I have on this 8111 day orMay 2009. caused a copy orthe roregoing

COMPLAINT OF HYPERCUBE TELECOM, LLC AGAINST LEVEL 3
COMMUNICATIONS, LLC FOR LEVEL 3'S REFUSAL TO PAY

TARIfFED ACCESS CHARGES

to be served upon the party listed below via U.S. Mail.

Gregory L. Rogers
Level 3 Communications, LLC
1025 Eldorado Boulevard
Broomfield, Colorado 80021

. Tel: (720) 888-2512

..............YofMoy""".W~

Edilma CllI'I'
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PROPOSALS FOR RESOLVING
CARRIER "SELF HELP" MEASURES
WITH RESPECf TO PAYMENT OF

LAWFUL ACCESS CHARGES

Issue:

The teleoommunications industry is plagued by a practice tbat is already prohibited by
the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC") rules yet persists. Intcrcxchange Carriers
("IXCs'1 collSistently use "self-help" to fun:e competiton to settle disputes on UDfilvorable
tenns. The FCC should make clear that "lelf-help" is an IIlllICCClJIIllle practice and carrien that
engage in "self-help" should be subject to meaningful enforcement in the form offorfeitures.

Backg!'O!Jlld:

Carriers are mjuired to pay for the use of o!hen' networks to originate and terminate
telephone calls. Tbese payments are refem:d to as to "intercarricr compensation" and can vary
based on a myriad of fadon including wbc:lber the service is c.Iassified as local or long distIInce,
interstate or intrasllde, or buic or enhauced, and the type ofcarrier involved in routing the call 10

its destination, e.g., wiJeI-. local exchange, IXC or an enhanced service provider. While "self­
help" may be used in a variety of situations, it ftequent\y occun in the context ofcarrier disputes
over access cbarges.

The.1egaI obligation to pay inten:arrier llOOlpensalion typically is established by a local
exchange carrier's tariff tbat is ffiled with and approved by state public utility commissions or
the FCC. IXCs tbat do not like the rales in these tarim have legal remedies in the form of tariff
protesIs or complaints to seek. lower rates. Ratbel' than punue theae remedies, however, some
IXCs simply refuse to pay these lawfully, tariffild charges.

This puts the carrier that is lJIIIIble to collect its lawfully tariffed charges in a quandary.
The IXCs and the local carrier are serving exactly the same customers - the IXC is providiJIg
them long-di"'PK'e service, and the local carrier Is providing them local calling. The local
carrier C8DIlllt simply dI8cooncc:t a oon-paying IXC beceue tbIs would harm the carrier's rela­
tionships with its own customers. Thus, the carrier is c:fti:c:tively forced to provide access service
for free until the dispuIe is resolved.

IXC self-help measures ad_1y impact the competitive telecommunications landscape
and intertae with carriers' ability 10 fbcus on providing high quality service to their customers.
Moreover, when large, betler capitalized IXCs Cllgage in anticompetitive self-help measures and
refuse to pay the lawfully tariffed cIJlqa, smaller carriers must cut costs, In the form oflayoflil,
which III'Iificia1ly impedes the growth of these small businesses. To prevent these unreasonable



and anticompetitive practices, the FCC should reiterate that carriers may not engage in "self­
help" and may not refuse to pay tariffed access charges at any time.1

EII.ting Rules:

The FCC has long prohibited carriers from engaging in "self-help," fmding that "a
customer, a competitor, is not entitled to the self-help measure of withholding payment for
tariffed services duly perfonned but should first pay, under protest, the amount allegedly due and
then seek redress if such amount was not proper under the carrier's applicable tariffed charges
and regulations.'.a This pay first and dispute later principlel was aflinned in MGC Communica­
ti01l3 v. AT&T Corp.! There, over the period from August 1998 to July 1999, AT&T advised
MGC that it would not pay fur MGC's interstate lICCCSS services, but kept accepting and using
those services. AT&Ts failure to pay fur those services was fuund to be impennissible self-help
and a violation ofsection 201(b) ofthe Communications Act.1

Since MCG, the FCC has reitenlted ils policy to prohihit "self-help" in numerous pro­
ceedings. It has said that !XCs cannot block traffic uni1alerally, either to put pressure on other
carriers to lower their charges, or to avoid incurring greater liabilities to those carriers. Instead,
the FCC has nlquired these common carriers to complete traffic while pursuing their complaints
against the interconnecting carriers In appropriate fora.6

! This also is important ifthe Commisahm.aopts a new imercanicr compensation regime
where rates glide downwon! 0_ a period ofy...... Sec High-COIt UnilIer.oI Service Support, FederoI­
Stale Jo/1lllJoard on Univer.oI Service, Life/1M and Link Up, Univer.alService COnlriblltion Methodol­
ogy, NWllbering lIBJource Optimization, Implemelltatlon ofthe Local Competition ProviJIionJ in the
TelecammlBlicationJ Actof/996, ~Iopinga Unified llIIucDTri"" CompenJation &gime, /ntercarrier
CompeIIJatiOll for lSP-&nmd Traffic, IP-E1rabledService!, Order on Remand and Report BDd Order and
I'urtbor Notice ofProposed Rulemalcing, Docket Nos. 05-337, 9645, 03-109, 06-122, 99-200, 96-98,01­
92,99-68 & 04-36, FCC 08-262 (ret Nov. 5, 2008) ("Order and FNPRM").

1 Broatelt v. AT&TCorp., 12 FCC Red 13343 atn.53 (Common CII. Bur. 1997) (citingMO
TeJecommlUlicarloru Corp., 62 F.C.C.2cI703, 705-706 (1976)).

1 Tho pay first BDd di.pule IIIler policy i. buecI on the filed rate doctrine, also known as the
filed tariffdoctrine. This doclrinc is a oommon law COIISlruct that origl_d injudioial and tcgullltOry
inteIpnlIations of1he Interstllle Commerce Act, was latr:r applied to telecommuni<:ati""" common carriers
and eventualJy was codified in Sec:ti<ln 203 ofth. Act. 00lI0 fi1ed, tarim establi.h the rams !XCs must
pay fur tariffild services, and "have the fon:e of law." Fry 1'nIcking Co. v. Sheno1tdoah Quarry, Inc., 628
F.2d 1360, 1363 (D.C. Cir. 1980).

i MeG Co_catiOllJ,lnc. v. ATciTCOIp., MomorondQIJI Opinion and Order, 14 FCC Red
11,647 (Comm. Car. Bur. 1999), affd., 15 FCC Ra1308 (1999) r'MeG").

! See id., 14 FCC Rcd at 11659,127.

6 EstabliJIhing.!lm and&4JoIIabk 1IJJteJjiJrLocoJ Exehallge Corrier.J, CaU BlocldrJg by Car­
rier., Dccllll1ltory Ruling BDd Order, 22 FCC Red 11629,1 I (Wircline Comp. Bur. 2007) I:'FCC CoIl
Blocking Order") (citing Sections 151 BDd 254 ofthe ComrnWlications Act).
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Notwithstanding these FCC findings, cerIBin IXCs continue to withhold access payments
as lev""'lle to force competitive local exchange caniers ("CLECs'') into accepting lower rates or
exact other concessions. For example, many !XCs withheld all access payments to numerous
CLECs shortly after the FCC adopted a transition period to bring CLEC interstate =ss rates
down to !LEC levels.zAnd even after the transition period ended and CLECs' interstate access
rates matched those of competing incumbent local exchange carriers in their service territories,
these !XCs continued to withhold payment on all access charges, even the undisputed interstate
access charges, simply because they were not happy with the CLECs' lawfully tariffed and
approved intrastate access rates, which typically are higher for all camers, not just CLECs, than
interstate rates.

In many cases, by withholding payment on CLEC access charges, IXCs forced CLECs
into access agreements and settlements at rates well helow the CLECs' lawf\Jlly tariffed rates.
CLECs that refused to accede to IXC demaDds or attempted to termillllle services to IXCs for
lililure to pay often fuund themselves in protractecI and costIy litigation with the IXCs. Generally
spealtlll& most of these disputes OCClD' between IXCs that are well capl1alized, publicly-traded
companies, and CLECs that are typically much smaller by many magnltudes.1 These IXC self­
help measures have real world consequences on small CLECs, forcing these companies to layoff
employees and delay growth plans. In the current economic environment, self-help is particularly
barmfuI III it exacerbates wtemp\oyment and IIl1:ificially stuDts the growth of innovative smaIl
companies. Additionally, these actions not only violate the FCC's rules, but also provide a
wmpetitive advantage to IXCs resulting fiom the considerable financial strain imposed on
CLECs furced to accept either helow tariff rates or spend valuable resources on litigation and
forego plans fur expansion and olher growth opportunities.l Self-belp tactics thwart the goals of
FCC rulemakings, such as the rules that wen: created in the CLEC Aoocss Refurm Order, and the
statutes and FCC rules that permit C1IITiers to file tariffs that have the furcc ofiaw.

z SeeA.cca. CIuIrge Refomt, 1IBjOmI ofA.C<:8.. Cltarga 1mpo&sd by COIIlpetUWe Lot:al J!J<­
cNmg.. Carrlen, CC Docket No. 96-262, Sevendl Report 8IId Order lIIId Ftu1hcr Notice ofPropoaed
RuJema!eing, 16 FCC Red 9923 (2001) r:'CLEC .A.ccu.1Ieftmn OrdtIT'j.

I For example, even in the curJeDt llUVironment ofmlllltet tunnoi~ IXColib AT&T BDd Vori­
ZOIl have market capitaIizalions ofapproximalely $148 ODd $88 billion l1lSJlCIClively, wIille ooe oftbe
Iarg_ CLBCs baa acapitaIizatioD ofS204 mUlion (rougbly 72S ODd 430 tim.. smaIlerlban AT&T lIIId
Verima BBmcasurcd by mlllltet capItaIizoIion).

! Many !XCo operate carrier eflilima that competlll with other local excbange carrim, such as
CLBCs. By refilaing to pay tarifted ac............... and/or litigatiDa dispuIoo, !XCo withhold valuable
revenues OWIld to CLBC. creaIing a competitive adYml1llge fur their 1Iffi1iaIca.
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Re8olgtioll:

Given the !XCs' repeated fBilures to heed FCC findinllS that self-help is an unreasonable
practice BIld violation of Section 201(b), the FCC must not only reiterate that carriers may not
refuse to pay competitors for lawfully tariffed charges, engage in traffic discrimination, or
undertake any other practices designed to furce competitors to transition to lower rates sooner
than required by the FCC or stale public utility commissions;lll it must add teeth to those policies
by adopting a base furfeiture for self-belp violations by c:ustomer-competitors.ll

The FCC should revise the base lOrfeiture schedule to make clear it will levy penalties
against carriers \bat engage in this discriminatory and anti-competitive practice. "Self-help," lilce
those activities outlined above, is more tban a simple customer dispute - it threatens smaller
carriers with the loss of their business, IMl1ts in customer disruptions such as the loss or reduc­
tion of service, 1hnlatens the ubiquitous COIIIIIlClivity of the telecommunications network gener­
ally, thwarts important FCC policies, and WllSIeS agency and carrier resources.

Section S03 of the Act provides that BIly pcr.iOn that willfully or repeatedly fails to
comply with any provision of the Act or BDy rule, ~Iation, or order issued by the FCC, shall
be liable to the United StBkls for a forfeilure penalty. The FCC has wide discretion in determin­
ing forfeitures fur violations of the Act, and it sbouId issue forfeiture notices for selfhelp actions
in an IIIDOUJIt consistent with other recent penalties levied fur a VlIriety ofviolations of the Act.
For example, for each 1IIOIltb in which a carrier has failed to JI'IY required universal service
contributions, the FCC has established a base furfeiture amount of 510,000 (for IDlderpayment)
or $20,000 (for no JI'IYMeDt)' plus an upward adjustment based on ono-half of the company's
approximate unpaid contributions to IIl1lbss both the detrimental impact on the Universa1
Service Fund lIIId the illegitimate wmpetiti\'e advaIItage the DOIl-payer pins.n Similarly, the
furfeitun: guidelines "cstablish a staodanI filrftliture amount of$40,000 for violations of our rules
and onlers Iq8Iding unauthorized chaIJ&es of percued inURxchange csrriers,"H another anti­
competitive practice.

See 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.

u. 47 U.S.C. § 503.

II See, e.g., TeJrite CorporatilNl, AppamrI LIabilityfor Fotfeltwe, Notice ofAppomlt Liobility
for ForMituie and Order, File No. EB-45-IH-2348, NAUAect. No. 200832080084, ft 14, 24-25 (reI. Apr.
17, 2008) (imJlOlling S924,212 forfeiture for IiIiIure to pay USF, TRS, NANPA, and othm ragulatmy feel
over the eourae ofapproximsJolly two yean, wbich ooutBined 8D 1IJiWIIid odjustment of$417,438, which
ICpJellented SO percent oftho 1aJIest bIIaDee due during that period).

H HorlzoIJ Telecom, brc., ApptlNIftLIability for ForfeltllTe, File No. EB-07-TC-4OO6,
NAUAc:et. No. 200832170013 (reI. Feb. 29, 2OO8)(1inina Horizon S5,084,OOO for slamming IIIId other
violatiOlil).

Jl Although some carriera may Imv. \egilimaIe diBputeB eom:erniDg jurisdictional c....ificstiou
oftraffie, those disputes ohouId not give a customer a free pas. til refuo. til pay all inlet_liar eompellA­
lion .,...,.. The: CIIIriers have legal JrlJDedleo otb« iban oeIf-heIp by whic:h til ooek Jellolutian oftheir
claims.
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The public inll:rest requires common carriers to complete their customers' caIJs and pay
lawful tariffed compensation rates to their common carrier competitors. The FCC should enforce
this requirement with investigations BOd furfl:itures just as it does in other instances of non­
payment (USF) and other anti-<:ompetitive practices (USF and .lamming). And the gravity of
these illegal self-help action tittther diotallls expediting any investigations to prevent these
activities as soon as practical. Such action is consistent with existing FCC rules and orders and
will allow carriers to focus on providing service to their customers, ratber than wasting resources
on disputes with IXCs. A standard base furfeiture guideline of $40,000 fur each month that an
IXC engages in self-help lIIld muses to pay a CLEC's lawfully tariffed IIl:CCSS charges is a
reasonable detenent for such illegal conduct and an amount that is consistent with othe!" FCC
forfeitures. .
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